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the entry for this document under the 
‘‘Federal Register—Environmental 
Documents.’’ You can also go directly to 
the Federal Register listings at http://
www.epa.gov/fedrgstr/. 

2. In person. The Agency has 
established an official record for this 
action under docket ID number OPP–
2002–0119. The official record consists 
of the documents specifically referenced 
in this action, any public comments 
received during an applicable comment 
period, and other information related to 
this action, including any information 
claimed as Confidential Business 
Information (CBI). This official record 
includes the documents that are 
physically located in the docket, as well 
as the documents that are referenced in 
those documents. The public version of 
the official record does not include any 
information claimed as CBI. The public 
version of the official record, which 
includes printed, paper versions of any 
electronic comments submitted during 
an applicable comment period, is 
available for inspection in the Public 
Information and Records Integrity 
Branch (PIRIB), Rm. 119, Crystal Mall 
#2, 1921 Jefferson Davis Hwy., 
Arlington, VA, from 8:30 a.m. to 4 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, excluding legal 
holidays. The PIRIB telephone number 
is (703) 305–5805. 

C. How and to Whom Do I Submit 
Comments? 

You may submit comments through 
the mail, in person, or electronically. To 
ensure proper receipt by EPA, it is 
imperative that you identify docket ID 
number OPP–2002–0119 in the subject 
line on the first page of your response. 

1. By mail. Submit your comments to: 
Public Information and Records 
Integrity Branch (PIRIB), Information 
Resources and Services Division 
(7502C), Office of Pesticide Programs 
(OPP), Environmental Protection 
Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW., 
Washington, DC 20460. 

2. In person or by courier. Deliver 
your comments to: Public Information 
and Records Integrity Branch (PIRIB), 
Information Resources and Services 
Division (7502C), OPP, Environmental 
Protection Agency, Rm. 119, Crystal 
Mall #2, 1921 Jefferson Davis Hwy., 
Arlington, VA. The PIRIB is open from 
8:30 a.m. to 4 p.m., Monday through 
Friday, excluding legal holidays. The 
PIRIB telephone number is (703) 305–
5805. 

3. Electronically. You may submit 
your comments electronically by e-mail 
to: opp-docket@epa.gov, or you can 
submit a computer disk as described 
above. Do not submit any information 
electronically that you consider to be 

CBI. Avoid the use of special characters 
and any form of encryption. Electronic 
submissions will be accepted in 
WordPerfect 6.1/8.0 or ASCII file 
format. All comments in electronic form 
must be identified by docket ID number 
OPP–2002–0119. Electronic comments 
may also be filed online at many Federal 
Depository Libraries. 

D. How Should I Handle CBI that I Want 
to Submit to the Agency? 

Do not submit any information 
electronically that you consider to be 
CBI. You may claim information that 
you submit to EPA in response to this 
document as CBI by marking any part or 
all of that information as CBI. 
Information so marked will not be 
disclosed except in accordance with 
procedures set forth in 40 CFR part 2. 
In addition to one complete version of 
the comment that includes any 
information claimed as CBI, a copy of 
the comment that does not contain the 
information claimed as CBI must be 
submitted for inclusion in the public 
version of the official record. 
Information not marked confidential 
will be included in the public version 
of the official record without prior 
notice. If you have any questions about 
CBI or the procedures for claiming CBI, 
please consult the person listed under 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT. 

E. What Should I Consider as I Prepare 
My Comments for EPA? 

You may find the following 
suggestions helpful for preparing your 
comments: 

1. Explain your views as clearly as 
possible. 

2. Describe any assumptions that you 
used. 

3. Provide copies of any technical 
information and/or data you used that 
support your views. 

4. If you estimate potential burden or 
costs, explain how you arrived at the 
estimate that you provide. 

5. Provide specific examples to 
illustrate your concerns. 

6. Offer alternative ways to improve 
the registration activity. 

7. Make sure to submit your 
comments by the deadline in this 
notice. 

8. To ensure proper receipt by EPA, 
be sure to identify the docket control 
number assigned to this action in the 
subject line on the first page of your 
response. You may also provide the 
name, date, and Federal Register 
citation. 

II. Registration Applications 

EPA received applications as follows 
to register pesticide products containing 

active ingredients not included in any 
previously registered products pursuant 
to the provision of section 3(c)(4) of 
FIFRA. Notice of receipt of these 
applications does not imply a decision 
by the Agency on the applications. 

Products Containing Active Ingredients 
not Included in any Previously 
Registered Products 

1. File Symbol: 279–GEAU. Applicant: 
FMC Corporation, Agricultural Products 
Group, 1735 Market Street, 
Philadelphia, PA 19103. Product name: 
F1785 GH 50 WG Insecticide. 
Insecticide. Active ingredient: 
Flonicamid at 50%. Proposed 
classification/Use: None. For 
greenhouse use. 

2. File Symbol: 71512–T. Applicant: 
ISK Biosciences Corporation, 7470 
Auburn Road, Suite A, Concord, OH 
44077. Product name: Technical 
Flonicamid Insecticide. Insecticide. 
Active ingredient: Flonicamid at 98.4%. 
Proposed classification/Use: None. For 
manufacturing use only.

List of Subjects 
Environmental protection, Pesticides 

and pest.
Dated: June 25, 2002. 

Debra Edwards, 
Acting Director, Registration Division, Office 
of Pesticide Programs.
[FR Doc. 02–17190 Filed 7–9–02; 8:45 am]
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 
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Northside Drive Superfund Site/
Atlanta, GA; Notice of Proposed 
Settlement

AGENCY: Environmental Protection 
Agency.
ACTION: Notice of proposed settlement.

SUMMARY: Under sections 104, 106(a), 
107 and 122 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act 
(CERCLA), Atlantic Steel and NL 
Industries, Inc. (Respondents) entered 
into an Administrative Order on 
Consent (AOC) with the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), whereby the 
Respondents agreed to perform response 
activities at the Northside Drive 
Superfund Site (Site) located in Atlanta, 
Georgia. Section VII of the AOC 
provides for the reimbursement of EPA’s 
past and future response costs by the 
Respondents. Under the terms of the 
AOC, section VII is subject to section 
122(i) of CERCLA, which requires EPA 
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to publish notice of the proposed 
settlement in the Federal Register for a 
thirty (30) day public comment period. 
EPA will consider public comments on 
section VII of the AOC for thirty days. 
EPA may withhold consent to all or part 
of section VII of the AOC if comments 
received disclose facts or considerations 
which indicate that section VII of the 
AOC is inappropriate, improper, or 
inadequate. 

Copies of the proposed settlement are 
available from: Ms. Paula V. Batchelor, 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
Region IV, CERCLA Program Services 
Branch, Waste Management Division, 61 
Forsyth Street, SW., Atlanta, Georgia 
30303, (404) 562–8887. 

Written comment may be submitted to 
Mr. Greg Armstrong at the above 
address within 30 days of the date of 
publication.

Dated: June 13, 2002. 
Anita L. Davis, 
Acting Chief, CERCLA Program Services 
Branch, Waste Management Division.
[FR Doc. 02–17315 Filed 7–9–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6560–50–P

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 

[FRL–7244–3] 

Zellwood Groundwater Superfund Site/
Zellwood, FL; Notice of Proposed 
Settlement

AGENCY: Environmental Protection 
Agency.
ACTION: Notice of proposed settlement.

SUMMARY: Under section 122 of the 
Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability 
Act (CERCLA), Industrial Container 
Services, LLC and Industrial Container 
Services—FL, LLC (Settling 
Respondent) entered into a Prospective 
Purchaser Agreement (PPA) with the 
Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), whereby the Respondent, in 
exchange for the United States’ 
covenant not to sue, agrees to pay EPA 
the fair market value of the property that 
is the subject of the PPA and further 
agrees to establish and maintain 
financial security in order to guarantee 
performance of the work set forth in the 
September 17, 2001 remedial design/
remedial action (RD/RA) consent decree 
for the Zellwood Groundwater 
Superfund Site (Site) located in 
Zellwood, Orange County, Florida. EPA 
will consider public comments on the 
proposed settlement for thirty days. EPA 
may withdraw from or modify the 
proposed settlement should such 

comments disclose facts or 
considerations which indicate the 
proposed settlement is inappropriate, 
improper, or inadequate. Copies of the 
proposed settlement are available from: 
Ms. Paula V. Batchelor, U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency, 
Region IV, CERCLA Program Services 
Branch, Waste Management Division, 61 
Forsyth Street, SW., Atlanta, Georgia 
30303, (404) 562–8887. 

Written comment may be submitted to 
Mr. Ray Strickland at the above address 
within 30 days of the date of 
publication.

Dated: June 26, 2002. 
Anita L. Davis, 
Acting Chief, CERCLA Program Services 
Branch, Waste Management Division.
[FR Doc. 02–17316 Filed 7–9–02; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 6560–50–P

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
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[FRL–7244–2; CWA–HQ–2002–6002; 
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Clean Water Act Class II: Proposed 
Administrative Settlement, Penalty 
Assessment and Opportunity To 
Comment Regarding Dobson Cellular 
Systems, Inc. and American Cellular 
Corporation

AGENCY: Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA).
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: EPA has entered into a 
consent agreement with Dobson Cellular 
Systems, Inc. and American Cellular 
Corporation (‘‘Respondents’’) to resolve 
violations of the Clean Water Act 
(‘‘CWA’’), Emergency Planning and 
Community Right-to-Know Act 
(‘‘EPCRA’’), Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act (‘‘RCRA’’), and Clean Air 
Act (‘‘CAA’’) and their implementing 
regulations. 

The Administrator is hereby 
providing public notice of this consent 
agreement and proposed final order, and 
providing an opportunity for interested 
persons to comment on the CWA 
portions of this consent agreement, in 
accordance with CWA section 
311(b)(6)(C), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(C). 

Respondents failed to prepare Spill 
Prevention Control and Countermeasure 
(‘‘SPCC’’) plans for four facilities where 
they stored diesel oil in above ground 
tanks. EPA, as authorized by CWA 
section 311(b)(6), 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6), 
has assessed a civil penalty for these 
violations. 

Respondents failed to file an 
emergency planning notification with 

the State Emergency Response 
Commission (‘‘SERC’’) and to provide 
the name of an emergency contact to the 
Local Emergency Planning Committee 
(‘‘LEPC’’) for eleven facilities. 
Respondents failed to submit Material 
Safety Data Sheets (‘‘MSDS’’) or a list of 
chemicals to the LEPC, the SERC, and 
the fire department with jurisdiction 
over each facility for twenty-three 
facilities in violation of EPCRA section 
311, 42 U.S.C. 11021. For twenty-three 
facilities, Respondents failed to submit 
an Emergency and Hazardous Chemical 
Inventory form to the LEPC, the SERC, 
and the fire department with 
jurisdiction over each facility in 
violation of EPCRA section 312, 42 
U.S.C. 11022. EPA, as authorized by 
EPCRA section 325, 42 U.S.C. 11045, 
has assessed a civil penalty for these 
violations. 

Respondents failed to notify the 
implementing agency of the existence of 
an Underground Storage Tank (‘‘UST’’) 
at four facilities in violation of RCRA 
section 9002(a)(1), 42 U.S.C. 6991a(a)(1). 
At four facilities, Respondents failed to 
comply with UST system upgrade 
requirements in violation of RCRA 
section 9003, 42 U.S.C. 6991b. 
Respondents failed to notify the 
implementing agency of closure at one 
facility in violation of RCRA section 
9003, 42 U.S.C. 6991b. EPA, as 
authorized by RCRA section 9006, 42 
U.S.C. 6991e, has assessed a civil 
penalty for these violations. 

Respondents failed to obtain the 
appropriate operating permits or 
exemptions at three facilities in 
violation of CAA section 110, 42 U.S.C. 
7410, and various state implementation 
plan (‘‘SIP’’) requirements for 
emergency generators. EPA, as 
authorized by CAA section 113(d)(1), 42 
U.S.C. 7413(d)(1), has assessed a civil 
penalty for these violations.
DATES: Comments are due on or before 
August 9, 2002.
ADDRESSES: Mail written comments to 
the Enforcement & Compliance Docket 
and Information Center (2201A), Docket 
Number EC–2002–019, Office of 
Enforcement and Compliance 
Assurance, U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania 
Avenue, NW., Mail Code 2201A, 
Washington, DC 20460. (Comments may 
be submitted on disk in WordPerfect 9.0 
or earlier versions.) Written comments 
may be delivered in person to: 
Enforcement and Compliance Docket 
Information Center, U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, Rm. 4033, Ariel Rios 
Bldg., 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC. Submit comments 
electronically to docket.oeca@epa.gov. 
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